
 
 

Licensing (Licensing and Gambling) Sub-
Committee 

 
 

 Thursday, 31st January, 2013 
at 9.30 am 

PLEASE NOTE TIME OF MEETING 
 
Conference Room 3 - Civic Centre 

 
This meeting is open to the public 

 Members 
 

 Councillor Cunio 
Councillor Laming 
Councillor Spicer 
 

 
 Contacts 

 
 Democratic Support Officer 

Sharon Pearson 
Tel: 023 8083 4597 
Email: sharon.pearson@southampton.gov.uk  

  

 Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services  
Richard Ivory  
Tel. 023 8083 2794 
Email: richard.ivory@southampton.gov.uk  

  

  

  
 

Public Document Pack



 

  
PUBLIC INFORMATION 

 
Terms of Reference 
 

Southampton City Council’s Seven Priorities 

• More jobs for local people 

• More local people who are well educated and 
skilled 

• A better and safer place in which to live and invest 

• Better protection for children and young people 

• Support to the most vulnerable people and families 

• Reducing health inequalities 

• Reshaping the Council for the future 
 
Smoking policy 
The Council operates a no-smoking policy in all civic 
buildings. 
 
Mobile Telephones –  
Please turn off your mobile telephone whilst in the 
meeting. 

The Sub-Committee deals with licences 
for which the Council is responsible 
under the Licensing Act, 2003 and 
Gambling Act 2005, including:- 

• Personal licences for the sale of 
liquor Licensing Act 2003; 

• Premises licences, various permits, 
variations and reviews (Licensing Act 
2003 and Gambling Act 2005); 

• Club certificates, variations and 
reviews Licensing Act 2003; 

• Registration and deregistration of 
designated premises supervisors 
Licensing Act 2003; 

• Determination of police objections to 
temporary event notices Licensing 
Act 2003 

Relevant Representations  
 
Those who have made relevant 
representations may address the 
meeting about the matter in which they 
have an interest. 

Fire Procedure –  
In the event of a fire or other emergency a continuous 
alarm will sound and you will be advised by Council 
officers what action to take. 
Access –  
Access is available for disabled people. Please contact 
the Democratic Support Officer who will help to make 
any necessary arrangements. 
 

When dealing with Licensing Act 
matters the Sub-Committee can only 
take into account  the following 
statutory Licensing Objectives:-  
 

• prevention of crime and disorder 

• public safety  

• prevention of public nuisance 

• protection of children from harm 
 
Likewise, when dealing with Gambling 
Act matters the Sub Committee can 
only take into account the statutory 
Licensing Objectives below:-  
 

• Preventing gambling being a source 
of crime 

• That gambling is conducted in a fair 
and open way 

• To protect children and other 
vulnerable children from harm 

Dates of Potential Meetings: Municipal Year  
2012/13 
 

2012 15
TH

 NOVEMBER 

10
TH

 MAY 29
TH

 NOVEMBER 

31
ST

 MAY 13
TH

 DECEMBER 

14
TH

 JUNE 2013 

28
TH

 JUNE 3
RD 

JANUARY 

12
TH

 JULY 17
TH

 JANUARY 

26
TH

 JULY 31
ST

 JANUARY 

9
TH

 AUGUST 14
TH

 FEBRUARY 

23
RD

 AUGUST 28
TH

 FEBRUARY 

6
TH

 SEPTEMBER 14
TH

 MARCH 

20
TH

 SEPTEMBER 28
TH

 MARCH 

4
TH

 OCTOBER 11
TH

 APRIL 

18
TH

 OCTOBER 25
TH

 APRIL 

1
ST

 NOVEMBER  



 

 
CONDUCT OF MEETING 

 
Terms of Reference  
 
The terms of reference are contained in 
the Council’s Constitution. 
 

Business to be discussed 
 
Only those items listed on the attached 
agenda may be considered at this meeting. 

 
Rules of Procedure 
 
The meeting is governed by the Council 
Procedure Rules as set out in Part 4 of 
the Constitution. 

Quorum 3 
 
The minimum number of appointed Members 
required to be in attendance to hold the 
meeting is 3. 

 
DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS 

 
Members are required to disclose, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct, 
both the existence and nature of any “Disclosable Personal Interest” or “Other Interest”  
they may have in relation to matters for consideration on this Agenda. 
 

DISCLOSABLE PERSONAL INTERESTS 
 
A Member must regard himself or herself as having a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in 
any matter that they or their spouse, partner, a person they are living with as husband or 
wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they were a civil partner in relation to:  
 
(i) Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 
(ii) Sponsorship: 
Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from Southampton 
City Council) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expense 
incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election expenses. 
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning of 
the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 
(iii) Any contract which is made between you / your spouse etc (or a body in which the 
you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interest) and Southampton City Council under 
which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed, and which has 
not been fully discharged. 
(iv) Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of Southampton. 
(v) Any license (held alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 
Southampton for a month or longer. 
(vi) Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) the landlord is Southampton City Council and 
the tenant is a body in which you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interests. 
(vii) Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where that body (to your knowledge) 
has a place of business or land in the area of Southampton, and either: 

a) the total nominal value fo the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the 
total issued share capital of that body, or 

b) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value 
of the shares of any one class in which you / your spouse etc has a beneficial 
interest that exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
 



 

Other Interests 
 

A Member must regard himself or herself as having a, ‘Other Interest’ in any membership 
of, or  occupation of a position of general control or management in: 

 
 
Any body to which they  have been appointed or nominated by Southampton City Council 
 
Any public authority or body exercising functions of a public nature 
 
Any body directed to charitable purposes 
 
Any body whose principal purpose includes the influence of public opinion or policy 
 

Principles of Decision Making 
 
All decisions of the Council will be made in accordance with the following principles:- 
 

• proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the desired outcome); 

• due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers; 

• respect for human rights; 

• a presumption in favour of openness, accountability and transparency; 

• setting out what options have been considered; 

• setting out reasons for the decision; and 

• clarity of aims and desired outcomes. 
 

In exercising discretion, the decision maker must: 
 

• understand the law that regulates the decision making power and gives effect to it.  
The decision-maker must direct itself properly in law; 

• take into account all relevant matters (those matters which the law requires the 
authority as a matter of legal obligation to take into account); 

• leave out of account irrelevant considerations; 

• act for a proper purpose, exercising its powers for the public good; 

• not reach a decision which no authority acting reasonably could reach, (also known as 
the “rationality” or “taking leave of your senses” principle); 

• comply with the rule that local government finance is to be conducted on an annual 
basis.  Save to the extent authorised by Parliament, ‘live now, pay later’ and forward 
funding are unlawful; and 

• act with procedural propriety in accordance with the rules of fairness. 
 



 

 

AGENDA 

 

Agendas and papers are available via the Council’s website. 
 

 
1 ELECTION OF CHAIR  

 
 To appoint a Chair for the purposes of this meeting.  

 
2 APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY)  

 
 To note any changes in the membership of the Sub-Committee made in accordance 

with the Licensing Act 2003.  
 

3 DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL AND PECUNIARY INTERESTS  
 

 In accordance with the Localism Act 2011, and the Council’s Code of Conduct, 
Members to disclose any personal or pecuniary interests in any matter included on the 
agenda for this meeting. 
 

NOTE:  Members are reminded that, where applicable, they must complete the 
appropriate form recording details of any such interests and hand it to the Democratic 
Support Officer.  

 
4 STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIR  

 
5 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)  

 
 To approve and sign as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 13th 

December 2012, 20th December 2012 and 3rd January 2013 and to deal with any 
matters arising, attached.  
 

6 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 At a predetermined point during the consideration of all items the Sub-Committee may 
move into private session in order to receive legal advice when determining issues. 
The press and the public, unless otherwise excluded by the Licensing Act 2003 
(Hearings) Regulations 2005, will be invited to return immediately following that private 
session at which time the matter will be determined and the decision of the Sub-
Committee will be announced.  
 

7 APPLICATION FOR PREMISES LICENCE - SAINSBURY'S SUPERMARKETS, 47-
65 BEVOIS VALLEY ROAD, SOUTHAMPTON, SO14 OJS  
 

 Report of the Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services detailing an application for a 
premises licence in respect of Sainsbury’s Supermarket, 47-65 Bevois Valley Road, 
Southampton, SO14 OJS, attached. 
  
 



 

8 VARIATION APPLICATION FOR PREMISES LICENCE - DPS VARIATION - 
PRESSO, 75 OXFORD STREET, SOUTHAMPTON, SO14 3DJ  
 

 Report of the Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services, detailing an application to 
vary a Premises Licence – DPS Variation, in respect of Presso, 25 Oxford Street, 
Southampton, SO14 3DJ, attached. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Wednesday, 23 January 2013 HEAD OF LEGAL, HR AND DEMOCRATIC 
SERVICES 

 



 
 
To approve and sign as a correct record the Minutes of the meetings held on 
13th December 2012, 20th December 2012 and 3rd January 2013 and to deal 
with any matters arising, attached. 
 

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

- 43 - 
 

SOUTHAMPTON CITY COUNCIL 
LICENSING (LICENSING AND GAMBLING) SUB-COMMITTEE 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 13 December 2012 
 

 

Present: 
 

Councillors Mrs Blatchford, Cunio and Laming 
 

 
66. ELECTION OF CHAIR  

 
RESOLVED that Councillor Cunio be elected Chair for the purposes of the meeting. 
 

67. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)  

 
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting held on 9th November 2012 be signed as a 
correct record.   (Copy of the minutes circulated with the agenda and appended to the 
signed minutes). 
 

68. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  

 
RESOLVED that in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 
2005 that the press and public be excluded at a predetermined point whilst the Sub-
Committee reached its decisions. 
 

69. APPLICATION TO VARY A PREMISES LICENCE - PIZZA CHICKEN KEBAB HOT 2 
YOU, 1A BEDFORD PLACE, POLYGON, SO15 2BY  

 
The Sub-Committee considered the application for a premises licence in respect of 
Pizza Chicken Kebab Hot 2 You, 1A Bedford Place, Polygon, Southampton, SO15 2BY.   
(Copy of report circulated with the agenda and appended to the signed minutes). 
 
PC Harris, PC Wood and PC Conway, Hampshire Constabulary, Mr Mohammed, 
Applicant (Owner), and Ms Sharma, Counsel for Applicant were present and with the 
consent of the Chair, addressed the meeting. 
 
The Sub-Committee considered the decision in confidential session in accordance with 
the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005. 
 
RESOLVED that the application to vary the premises licence be refused. 
 
REASONS 
 
The Sub-Committee  considered the application to vary a premises licence at Pizza 
Chicken Kebab Hot 2 You and gave due regard to the Licensing Act 2003, the 
Licensing Objectives, statutory guidance, the adopted statement of Licensing Policy, 
human rights legislation and the evidence submitted by all parties, both written and 
given orally today. 
 
The Sub-Committee particularly noted the following points raised by the applicant:- 
  

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1



 

- 44 - 
 

1 breaches regarding trading outside the hours permitted dated back to 
December 2010; 

2 despite two previous reviews and concerns raised there might have been 
difficulty with regards to language and understanding the licence; 

3 SIA security guards assisted the police in preventing crime and disorder; 
4 the number of incidents in the immediate vicinity of the premises,  specifically 

relating to Bedford Place and the premises in particular; 
5 extension of SIA staff hours would maintain the current position or reduce the 

impact of the premises; 
6 an increase in hours was not to target those leaving the area but to bring the 

premises in line with others trading later, without door staff or CCTV 
conditions; 

7 there was a considerable difference between Friday and Saturday and 
Tuesday nights (being a student night);   

8 that as of today the applicant had installed an upgraded CCTV system to 
enable better compliance with conditions;  and 

9 the financial impact. 
 
In considering the above, the Sub-Committee balanced evidence presented by the 
police confirming that despite two previous reviews of the premises, the latest  being in 
April 2011, the premises continued to fail to comply with conditions attached to the 
licence, specifically relating to the maintenance and inspection of CCTV and the 
production of CCTV when required.   It was also noted that police evidence showed that 
the conditions attached to the licence had been provided in writing and in the 
applicant’s first language. 
 
Whilst it was accepted that other premises might have longer trading hours and no 
requirement for door staff or CCTV, the Sub-Committee considered it a relevant factor 
that those specific requirements had been placed upon the premises due to specific 
issues previously identified relating to the premises.    The Sub-Committee concluded 
that the fact that the conditions had resulted in a lower number of incidents at this 
particular premises, showed that the conditions imposed were having a positive effect 
on the prevention of crime and disorder at the premises and in the immediate vicinity.   
It was felt that on the balance of probabilities, any reduction in those requirements 
would lead to an increase of those issues. 
 
Whilst it was noted that other premises did not have a formal requirement or condition 
requiring the use of CCTV, police evidence indicated that they all had functioning CCTV 
systems in place. 
 
The Sub-Committee considered the difference between Friday and Saturday nights and 
Tuesday (student night) and noted that the figures did show a difference between the 
two, but nonetheless felt that Tuesday remained a significantly busy period to warrant 
retention of door staff. 
 
The Sub-Committee considered the figures relating to incidents in the area and noted 
that only one incident was directly linked to the premises in question.     However, it 
considered the nature and severity of that incident to be such that it raised considerable 
concern.   More importantly, the Sub-Committee considered the response of staff at the 
premises, both in failing to report and log the incident and the subsequent inadequacies 
regarding the provision of CCTV to be of very serious concern. 



 

- 45 - 
 

 
The Sub-Committee accepted legal advice given in public session relating to the 
Cumulative Impact Policy (CIP) which created a rebuttable presumption that 
applications of this type should be refused unless the applicant was able to establish 
that the proposed licensable activities would not, on the balance of probabilities, lead to 
an increase in or add to the issues already experienced within the designated area. 
 
Accordingly, and in light of all the above, the Sub-Committee was not satisfied that the 
applicant had, on the balance of probabilities, established that the variation application 
or any part of it, would not lead to an increase in the issues in the area. 
 

70. APPLICATION FOR PREMISES LICENCE - HOLLYOAK STORES, 25-33 HOLLY 
OAK ROAD, SOUTHAMPTON, SO16 5GB  

 
The Sub-Committee considered the application for a premises licence in respect of 
Hollyoak Stores, 25-33 Holly Oak Road, Southampton, SO16 5GB.  (Copy of report 
circulated with the agenda and appended to the signed minutes). 
 
PC Harris and PC Conway, Hampshire Constabulary, Mr and Mrs Bhakar, Applicants, 
Mr Spink, Counsel for Applicant, Mrs Brazil, Mrs Castle and Miss Martinez, Residents, 
and Councillor Thomas, Ward Councillor, were present and with the consent of the 
Chair, addressed the meeting. 
 
The Sub-Committee considered the decision in confidential session in accordance with 
the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005. 
 
RESOLVED that:- 
 
the application for a premises licence be granted  in the terms sought and subject to: 
 
i) Agreed conditions relating to CCTV, Training, Challenge 25, Refusals Log, Till 
System, Incident Book, Storage and Staffing - as detailed on pages 25-27 of the 
Report, and; 
 
ii) Subject to the following conditions where they differ to those set out within the report 
on pages 26 and 27 of the bundle.    All those other conditions set out as listed above 
shall be applied to the licence as indicated in the report. 

 
 

• Staffing – two members of staff will be in the premises at all times during the 
licensed hours when alcohol is being sold.    One person in the premises during 
licensed hours will always be a personal licence holder.    An SIA registered 
member of door staff will be at the premises between 17h30 hours and closing 
on Friday – Saturday and 18h00 to closing on Sunday to Thursday.   Whilst door 
staff are on duty Sunday to Thursday there shall, as a minimum, be in addition 
one member of staff on duty within the store and Friday – Saturday two 
additional staff. 

• The premises licence holder shall participate in any bottle-marking scheme 
organised by the police or trading standards when so required. 



 

- 46 - 
 

• Signage approved by the police shall be placed on the entrance door to the 
premises and at the point of sale advising that it is a criminal offence to purchase 
alcohol on behalf of any person under the age of 18. 

 
iii) no sales of alcohol shall take place in accordance with the licence hereby 
granted until all the conditions have been fully implemented and approval of the 
signage is obtained in writing. 

 
REASONS 
 
The Sub-Committee  considered the application for a premises licence at Hollyoak 
Store,and gave due regard to the Licensing Act 2003, the Licensing Objectives, 
statutory guidance, the adopted statement of Licensing Policy, human rights legislation 
and the evidence submitted by all parties, both written and given orally today by 
Hampshire Constabulary, residents and the applicant. 
 
The Sub-Committee also considered evidence submitted late, but none the less in 
advance of the hearing. 
 
It was noted that the Police held no objection in relation to the applicant who had been 
willing to provide extensive conditions.  The Sub-Committee also noted that in this 
case, residents were both supportive as well as objecting to the grant of the premises 
licence. 
 
In considering the evidence of the police and residents relating to the licensing 
objectives and the potential for problems caused by the sale of alcohol in this location 
and the concerns of residents relating to anti-social behaviour, the Sub-Committee 
were satisfied that the agreed conditions along with additional conditions relating to 
bottle-marking and signage would, on balance, be sufficient to address the issues and 
concerns raised by the police and residents. 
  
The Sub-Committee carefully evaluated the potential risk based on historic evidence 
and balanced that against the current representations which suggested a change in the 
nature of the locality.   The Sub-Committee felt that the issues of anti-social behaviour 
of which the most serious evidence dated back to 2005, would not likely recur if the 
premises had the above conditions attached to the licence.     However, the Sub-
Committee continued to hold concerns in relation to the location of this premises and 
the mainly historic evidence showing crime and anti-social behaviour.    
 
Careful analysis of the evidence presented, did not sufficiently show on balance that it 
was appropriate and proportionate to refuse a licence.  Whilst considering this the Sub-
Committee took into account the significant steps that the applicant had proposed.   In 
particular, the Sub-Committee noted:- 
 

• the fact that the premises had the benefit of extensive CCTV, which the police 
noted in their own evidence was now at a satisfactory level, covering areas 
including the grassy area opposite; 

• that the premises would only open until 7.30 pm (the majority of issues occurred 
after that time);  

• that the premises would employ security staff every day of the week;  and 

• that alcohol would be stored in a locked container behind the counter. 



 

- 47 - 
 

 
Residents could be reassured by the fact that the Licensing Act 2003 did allow for 
significant steps to be taken in the event that a premises caused issues and 
undermined the licensing objectives.   Any evidence showing a clear causal link to the 
premises would be taken extremely seriously and both the police and local residents 
would be able to initiate a review in the event that any issues arose. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Sub-Committee recommended that the premises licence holder made every effort 
to restore positive relationships with residents and attended any agency meeting 
relevant to the area. 
 
 
 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

- 48 - 
 

SOUTHAMPTON CITY COUNCIL 
LICENSING (LICENSING AND GAMBLING) SUB-COMMITTEE 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 20 December 2012 
 

 

Present: 
 

Councillors Parnell, Thomas and Tucker 
 

 
71. ELECTION OF CHAIR  

 
RESOLVED that Councillor Tucker be elected Chair for the purposes of this meeting. 
 

72. DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL AND PECUNIARY INTERESTS  
 

73. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)  

 
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Meting held on 29th November 2012 be signed as a 
correct record.   (Copy of the minutes circulated with the agenda and appended o the 
signed minutes). 
 

74. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  

 
RESOLVED that in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 
2005 that the press and public be excluded at a predetermined point whilst the Sub-
Committee reached its decisions. 
 

75. APPLICATION FOR PREMISES LICENCE - KHAN INTERNATIONAL 
SUPERMARKET, 179-181 SHIRLEY ROAD, SOUTHAMPTON, SO15 3FG  

 
The Sub-Committee considered the application for a premises licence in respect of 
Khan International Supermarket, 179-181 Shirley Road, Southampton, SO15 3FG.   
(Copy of the report circulated with the agenda and appended to the signed minutes). 
 
Mr Thangavel, Premises Licence Holder/Applicant, Mr Sarma, family member, Mr 
Hudson, Licensing Consultant for Applicant, PC Conway and PC Smith, Hampshire 
Constabulary, were present and with the consent of the Chair, addressed the meeting. 
 
The Sub-Committee considered the decision in confidential session in accordance with 
the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations. 
 
RESOLVED that the application for a premises licence be granted, subject to:- 
 
i. the conditions outlined in the operating schedule and, in addition, as detailed in 

the police representation.   NB – where the police conditions repeat or contradict 
those set out in the operating schedule, the police conditions shall prevail; and 

ii. the following additional conditions:- 

• the premises licence holder shall ensure that the premises participate in 
any bottle-marking exercise or scheme as and when required by either 
the police or trading standards;  and 

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 2



 

- 49 - 
 

• each and every sale of alcohol shall be directly supervised and authorised 
by either the Designated Premises Supervisor or a personal licence 
holder. 

 
REASONS 
 
The Sub-Committee considered very carefully the application for a premises licence at 
Khan International Supermarket and gave due regard to the Licensing Act 2003, the 
Licensing Objectives, statutory guidance, the adopted statement of Licensing Policy 
and Human rights legislation. 
 
The Sub-Committee considered very carefully all the evidence  submitted by both 
parties, both written and given orally today, in particular that relating to crime and 
disorder in the immediate vicinity of the premises.   It was common ground that the 
area, generally, suffered from a disproportionate level of anti-social behaviour including 
street drinking, litter and public nuisance.   However, despite these clear concerns the 
Sub-Committee noted a lack of direct evidence showing a causal link to any premises 
within the area as a result of sales of alcohol. 
 
The argument advanced by the police was that in light of the nature and number of 
incidents in the area it necessarily followed that an additional premises supplying 
alcohol in the area would lead to an increase in those issues.     The Sub-Committee 
had grave concerns regarding the nature and number of the incidents reported, 
however, decided that in light of the lack of direct evidence, it was not appropriate to 
refuse the premises licence. 
 
It was felt that on balance the above conditions would be sufficient and appropriate 
measures, if properly implemented, to address the anti-social behavioural issues and 
that it was appropriate that the conditions required additional control of alcohol sales 
than normally expected. 
 
The Sub-Committee, whilst making this decision, took into account the ability to make 
representation in the future, which would lead, where evidence showed the premises 
were the cause of anti-social behaviour, to a review hearing where steps could be taken 
to address the issues. 
 

76. APPLICATION FOR PREMISES LICENCE - WORLD SHOP, 210-214 SHIRLEY 
ROAD, SOUTHAMPTON, SO15 3FL  

 
The Sub-Committee considered the application for a premises licence in respect of 
World Shop, 210-214 Shirley Road, Southampton, SO15 3FL.    (Copy of the report 
circulated with the agenda and appended to the signed minutes). 
 
Mr Hussein, Owner/Applicant, Mr Crier, Solicitor for the Applicant, PC Conway and PC 
Smith, Hampshire Constabulary, were present and with the consent of the chair, 
addressed the meeting. 
 
The Sub-Committee considered the decision in confidential session in accordance with 
the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations. 
 
 



 

- 50 - 
 

RESOLVED that the application for a premises licence be granted subject to:- 
 
iii. the conditions outlined in the operating schedule and in addition, as detailed in 

the police representation.   NB – where the police conditions repeat or contradict 
those set out in the operating schedule, the police conditions shall prevail; and 

 
iv. the following additional conditions:- 

• each and every sale of alcohol be directly supervised and authorised by 
either the Designated Premises Supervisor or a personal licence holder; 

• sales of single cans of alcohol shall be prohibited unless part of a basket 
of goods other than alcohol; 

• the sale of alcohol shall only be permitted between the hours of 09h00 
and 23h00 daily; 

• all alcohol shall not be visible or accessible to customers during hours that 
the premises may be open but not licensed for the sale of alcohol;  and 

 
v. the premises licence holder be recommended to implement the policy requiring a 

security guard on the premises between the  hours of 14h00 to 23h00.  
 
REASONS 
 
It was noted that the nature of the objection raised by the police and much of the 
evidence submitted directly mirrored that relating to a previous application heard 
immediately prior to this matter.   The reasons set out below therefore draw the same 
conclusions, albeit that the Sub-Committee considered each application on its own 
merits. 
 
The Sub-Committee considered very carefully all the evidence presented, in particular 
that relating to crime and disorder in the immediate vicinity of the premises.   It was 
common ground that the area, generally, suffered from a disproportionate level of anti-
social behaviour including street drinking, litter and public nuisance.   However, despite 
these clear concerns the Sub-Committee noted a lack of direct evidence showing a 
causal link to any premises within the area as a result of sales of alcohol. 
 
The argument advanced by the police was that in light of the nature and number of 
incidents in the area it necessarily followed that an additional premises supplying 
alcohol in the area would lead to an increase in those issues.     The Sub-Committee 
had grave concerns regarding the nature and number of the incidents reported, 
however, felt that in light of the lack of direct evidence, it was not appropriate to refuse 
the premises licence. 
  
It was felt that on balance the above conditions would be sufficient and appropriate 
measures, if properly implemented, to address the anti-social behavioural issues and 
that it was appropriate that the conditions required additional control of alcohol sales 
than normally expected. 
 
Whilst the reasons above closely matched those given previously, it should be noted 
that the applicant in this case voluntarily offered different proposed steps to the 
previous applicant which were noted and accepted by the Sub-Committee given that 
each case must, as previously stated, be considered on its own merits. 
 



 

- 51 - 
 

The Sub-Committee, whilst making this decision, took into account the ability to make 
representation in the future, which would lead, where evidence showed the premises 
were the cause of anti-social behaviour, to a review hearing where steps could be taken 
to address the issues. 
 
 

 



 

- 52 - 
 

SOUTHAMPTON CITY COUNCIL 
LICENSING (LICENSING AND GAMBLING) SUB-COMMITTEE 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 3 January 2013 
 

 

Present: 
 

Councillors Cunio, L Harris and Parnell 
 

  

Apologies: Councillor Thomas 
 

 
77. ELECTION OF CHAIR  

 
RESOLVED that Councillor Cunio be elected Chair for the purposes of this meeting. 
 

78. APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY)  

 

The Sub-Committee noted that Councillor L Harris was in attendance as a nominated 
substitute for Councillor Thomas in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 4.3. 
 

79. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  

 
RESOLVED that in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 
2005 that the press and public be excluded at a predetermined point whilst the Sub-
Committee reached its decisions. 
 

80. APPLICATION FOR PREMISES LICENCE - POUND-XTRA, 106 ST MARYS ROAD, 
SOUTHAMPTON, SO14 OAN  

 
The Sub-Committee considered the application for a premises licence in respect of  
Pound-Xtra, 106 St Marys Road, Southampton, SO14 OAN.  (Copy of the report 
circulated with the agenda and appended to the signed minutes). 
 
Mr Siraj, Applicant, Mr Hudson, Licensing Consultant for Applicant, PC Harris and Sgt 
Wood, Hampshire Constabulary, Mr Marshall, Trading Standards and Mr Lakhani, 
Resident/Local Businessman were present and with the consent of the Chair, 
addressed the meeting. 
 
The Sub-Committee considered the decision in confidential session in accordance with 
the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005. 
 
RESOLVED that the application for a premises licence be refused. 
 
REASONS 
 
The Sub-Committee considered very carefully the application for a premises licence at 
Pound-Xtra, 106 St Marys Road, Southampton, SO14 OAN and gave due regard to the 
Licensing Act 2003, the Licensing Objectives, statutory guidance, the adopted 

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 3



 

- 53 - 
 

statement of Licensing Policy, Human rights legislation and the evidence submitted by 
all parties, both written and given orally today. 
 
The Sub-Committee listened carefully to the evidence for the premises licence holder. 
However, this was outweighed by the strength of the evidence presented by the Police, 
Trading Standards and Mr Lakhani, relating to the continuing involvement and influence 
of the previous owners and DPS at the premises.   
 
It was noted that the premises had previously been the subject of two reviews resulting 
in the revocation of the premises licence which was accepted as fact by all parties.   
Trading Standards in their evidence stated the issues at the premises were some of the 
worst breaches of the Licensing Act 2003 experienced in Southampton.  For this reason 
the Sub-Committee was particularly concerned about the potential for the continuing 
involvement of those responsible for previous breaches at the premises. 
 
The Sub-Committee were particularly concerned that the staff employed at the 
premises were the same three staff employed by the previous owners and that one of 
the three had been directly responsible for an underage sale of alcohol. 
 
Pound-Xtra was a particularly troubled premises historically suffering from sales of 
counterfeit alcohol and underage sales which the Sub-Committee considered to be 
amongst the most serious type of breach of the Licensing Act 2003.  The fact that the 
same staff remained at the premises, coupled with the fact that the applicant was 
currently living and working in Sheffield and had no real experience of running a 
business of this type caused considerable concern, albeit that he was in the process of 
working towards attaining a Personal Licence. 
 
Evidence raised considerable concerns regarding the legitimacy of the transfer of the 
business to the applicant and the issues are briefly set out as follows:- 
 

• a previous attempt to purportedly transfer a half share of the business and 
application made for a premises licence resulting in an objection from the Police 
and Trading Standards, led to withdrawal of that application; 

• that a further transfer of half the business was made and subsequently only 
amended to show a full transfer following an interview; 

• the applicant was unable to show any evidence of substance confirming 
payment for the business; 

• the fact that evidence revealed that alcohol allegedly the property of the previous 
owners remained at the premises until Christmas Day 2012, despite the terms of 
the sale agreement; 

• an apparent lack of cooperation in providing relevant CCTV images when 
requested by the Police and Trading Standards;  and 

• the continuing presence of the previous owners at the premises after the alleged 
transfer of the premises. 

 
For all the above reasons the Sub-Committee felt that refusal was appropriate and 
necessary to ensure that the Licensing Objectives would be upheld.  The Sub-
Committee was mindful that the application should be considered on its own merits but 
was not satisfied on the balance of the evidence that this application was an arms 
length transaction and that the previous owners would as a matter of fact cease to have 
any involvement or control over the business.   



 

- 54 - 
 

 
The Sub-Committee did consider granting the licence subject to a condition prohibiting 
the previous owners from any involvement with the business, but felt that in light of the 
previous disregard of conditions, this would not be sufficient to ensure that the licensing 
objectives would be promoted. 
 
The Sub-Committee notified the parties of the right of appeal. 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Reference: 2012/02596/01SPRN Hearing: 31st January 2013

Application for Premises Licence  

Premises Name: Sainsbury's Supermarkets Application Date: 13th December 2012  
Premises Address: 47 - 65 Bevois Valley 

Road 
Southampton 
SO14 0JS 

Application 
Received Date: 

14th December 2012  

Application Valid
Date:

14th December 2012  

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on 
behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction 
infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Southampton City Council 
Licence No. 100019679 2007. 

Page 1 of 27

Agenda Item 7



Representation From Responsible Authorities 

Responsible Authority Satisfactory? Comments 

Child Protection Services - 
Licensing 

Yes 

Hampshire Fire And Rescue 
- Licensing 

Yes 

Environmental Health - 
Licensing 

Yes 

Planning & Sustainability - 
Building Control - Licensing 

Yes 

Primary Care Trust - Public 
Health Manager 

Yes 

Planning & Sustainability - 
Development Control - 
Licensing 

Yes 

Police - Licensing Yes

Trading Standards - 
Licensing 

Yes 

Other Representations 

Name Address Contributor Type 

Ms. Steph Smith 

30 Clausentum Road 
Southampton 

SO14 6RZ 
Resident  

Page 2 of 27



Legal Implications 

1. The Licensing Act 2003 specifically restricts the grounds on which the Council, as 
Licensing Authority (LA), may refuse an application for a new Premises Licence, or 
impose conditions.  Where relevant representations are made, the LA may refuse on 
the grounds that the licensing objectives are not met or the operating schedule is 
inadequate. Equally, conditions may be imposed where relevant and necessary. The 
LA may also refuse an application in part and thereby only permit some of the 
licensable activities sought. 

2. The decision making committee, in considering an application, must have regard to 
the adopted Statement of Licensing Policy and any relevant representations made by 
those directly affected. 

3. An applicant for a new Premises Licence whose application has been refused, or who 
is aggrieved by conditions imposed, may appeal against the decision to the 
Magistrates' Court. 

4. In considering this application the committee will sit in a quasi-judicial capacity and is 
thus obliged to consider applications in accordance with both the Licensing Act 2003 
(Hearings) Regulations 2005, and amending secondary legislation and the rules of 
natural justice. The practical effect of this is that the committee must makes its 
decision based on evidence submitted in accordance with the legislation and give 
adequate reasons for reaching it’s decision. 

The committee must also have regard to:- 

5. Crime and Disorder Act 1998
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places the Council under a duty to 
exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of 
those functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent, crime and 
disorder in its area. 

6. Human Rights Act 1998 
The Act requires UK legislation to be interpreted in a manner consistent with the 
European Convention on Human Rights. It is unlawful for the Council to act in a way 
that is incompatible (or fail to act in a way that is compatible) with the rights protected 
by the Act. Any action undertaken by the Council that could have an effect upon 
another persons Human Rights must be taken having regard to the principle of 
Proportionality - the need to balance the rights of the individual with the rights of the 
community as a whole. Any action taken by the Council which affect another's rights 
must be no more onerous than is necessary in a democratic society. The matter set 
out in this report must be considered in light of the above obligations.

Page 3 of 27



Page 4 of 27



Page 5 of 27



Page 6 of 27



Page 7 of 27



Page 8 of 27



Page 9 of 27



Page 10 of 27



Page 11 of 27



Page 12 of 27



Page 13 of 27



Page 14 of 27



Page 15 of 27



Page 16 of 27



Page 17 of 27



Page 18 of 27



Page 19 of 27



Page 20 of 27



Page 21 of 27



Page 22 of 27



Page 23 of 27



Page 24 of 27



Page 25 of 27



Page 26 of 27



Page 27 of 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Reference: 2012/02547/01SPRD Hearing: 31
st
 January 2013 

Variation Application for Premises Licence - DPS Variation  

Premises Name: Prezzo Application Date: 29th November 2012  
Premises Address: 25 Oxford Street 

Southampton 
SO14 3DJ 

Application 
Received Date: 

6th December 2012  

Application Valid
Date:

6th December 2012  

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Eastleigh 
Borough Council Ordnance Survey Licence Number 100019622 (2007). 

Representations From Responsible Authorities 

Responsible Authority Satisfactory? Comments 

Police - Licensing   No See attached representation 

Page 1 of 8

Agenda Item 8



05HRPV   

Legal Implications 

1. Where the Police give notice (stating that the Chief Officer of Police is satisfied that the 
exceptional circumstances of the case are such that granting the application would 
undermine the crime prevention objective and stating their reasons) the authority must –
(a) hold a hearing to consider it, unless the authority, the applicant and the Chief Officer 
of Police who gave the notice agree that a hearing is unnecessary, and 
(b) having regard to the notice, reject the application if it considers it necessary for the 
promotion of the crime prevention objective to do so. 

2. The decision making panel, in considering an application, must have regard to the 
notice, adopted Statement of Licensing Policy and any relevant representations of the 
applicant. 

3. An applicant, whose application has been rejected, may appeal against the decision to 
the Magistrates' Court.  Likewise the Chief Officer of Police may appeal against a 
decision to grant the application. 

4. Where an application is granted or rejected, the relevant licensing authority must give a 
notice to that effect to –  
(a) the applicant, 
(b) the proposed individual and 
(c) the Chief Officer of Police for the police area (or each police area) in which the 

premises are situated. 
The notice must state the authority’s reasons for granting or rejecting the application.  
Where the application is granted, the notice must specify the time when the variation 
takes effect. 

5. In considering this application the panel will sit in a quasi-judicial capacity and is thus 
obliged to consider applications in accordance with both the Licensing Act 2003 
(Hearings) Regulations 2005, and amending secondary legislation and the rules of 
natural justice. The practical effect of this is that the panel must makes its decision
based on evidence submitted in accordance with the legislation and give adequate 
reasons for reaching it’s decision. 

The panel must also have regard to:- 

6. Crime and Disorder Act 1998
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places the Council under a duty to 
exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those 
functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent, crime and disorder 
in its area. 

7. Human Rights Act 1998 
The Act requires UK legislation to be interpreted in a manner consistent with the 
European Convention on Human Rights. It is unlawful for the Council to act in a way 
that is incompatible (or fail to act in a way that is compatible) with the rights protected by 
the Act. Any action undertaken by the Council that could have an effect upon another 
persons Human Rights must be taken having regard to the principle of Proportionality - 
the need to balance the rights of the individual with the rights of the community as a 
whole. Any action taken by the Council which affect another's rights must be no more 
onerous than is necessary in a democratic society. The matter set out in this report 
must be considered in light of the above obligations.

Page 2 of 8



Page 3 of 8



Page 4 of 8



Page 5 of 8



Page 6 of 8



Page 7 of 8



Page 8 of 8


	Agenda
	5 Minutes Of The Previous Meeting (Including Matters Arising)
	Minutes 13th December
	Minutes 20th December
	Minutes 3rd January 2013

	7 Application for Premises Licence - Sainsbury's Supermarkets, 47-65 Bevois Valley Road, Southampton, SO14 OJS
	8 Variation Application for Premises Licence - DPS Variation - Presso, 75 Oxford Street, Southampton, SO14 3DJ

